
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MINUTES 
May 14,2018 

Planning and Zoning Board Members: 
Regina Dunay, Chairperson 
Chris Rader, Co-Chair 
Dav id Gragg, Board Member 
Marion Rayburn, Board Member 
Aileen Trivedi, Board Member 

Sta ff: 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 
Ellen Hardgrove, City Planner 
David Mahler, City Engineer 
Sergeant David Ireland, Police Officer 
Sandra Repp, Deputy City Clerk 

Applicants: 
Sheila Cichra, Streamline Permitting 

I CALL TO ORDER 

(Quorum) 

Chairwoman Dunay called the Planning & Zoning Board meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. Admin istrative Assi stant, Sandy Repp, announced that there was a quorum with all 
members present. 

I APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• April 9, 2018 

Board Member Rader requested the following changes to the minutes: page 4, paragraph 4 added 
"Attorney Smith replied that OCPS cannot impose rul es upon Edgewood or say that Edgewood has to 
give them rezoning" in order to show that OCPS's argument was countered. 

Page 4, paragraph 6 added the following language in order to convey the information that the Board 
requested more time to consider: "Board Member Rader expressed that neither Edgewood staff nor 
the board have had adequate time to prepare and that it is wrong to ask sta ff to give a comprehensive 
answer without an opportunity to digest the information that has been presented. Board Member 
Rader continued that OCPS has had two months to prepare compared to the few minutes that the 
Board has had to review. Board Member Gragg and Chai rwoman Dunay concurred with Board 
Member Rader. 

Attorney Smith replied that the Board has to give an up or down vote if that is what the applicant 
requests." 

1 Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes May 14, 2018 



The minutes will be voted upon for approval in the next meeting when the requested revisions by Board 
Member Rader have been made. 

I NEW BUSINESS 
• Val'iance 2018-05- Var iance request for 1400 Windsong Rd. to allow a boat dock length of I 02 feet, 

exceed ing allowable 65 feet. 

Engineer Mahler referred to the recommendation of approva l letter from CPH to approve a boat dock 
with a length of I 02 feet rather than 65 feet, a llowable by Code, in order to achieve adequate water 
depth. The app licant has prov ided the application with justification cri teria and the dock would be 
less th an I ,000 square feet. Engineer Mahler stated that based on the information submitted CPH had 
no issues to be considered bringing this to P&Z for approval. They did not ask for a separate lake 
survey because the signed, sealed plans and drawings matched the maps. 

Board Member Rader stated his concern about applications boat docks asking for variances and 
Chairwoman Dunay asked if there is a way to change Code as it appears that there are a lot of 
requests for this type of variance for water depth. Attorney Smith said that this is not an unusual 
request because of undulating shore lines and depths. It is difficult to draft a standard ironclad Code, 
and this is probably the most frequent variance. In response to Chairwoman Dunay regarding future 
discussion of a simplification of the variance process, Attorney Smith sa id that can be considered. 

Board Member Trivedi asked about potential navigational hazards with the extra distance. Engineer 
Mahler responded that there is travelab le distance on the waterward side of the dock. The Conway 
chain of lakes has deep water but the slopes are gradual. 

In response to Board Member Trivedi's request for the depth with the extra 37 feet of length, Board 
Member Gragg said it is 4.6 feet which was confirmed by Engineer Mahler. Ms. Cichra presented a 
signed and sea led version of the proposed dock which was agreeable to the Board. 

Ms. Cichra came to the podium on behalf of the property owner and said that they are asking for a 
length that will bring them to 4.5 feet. Ms. Cichra mentioned Belle Isle code which suppo11s 
administrati ve length requirements in lieu of variance requests. Ms. Cichra said they cannot build out 
20 feet beyond a neighbors dock because it will be a navigational haza rd. An as-bu ilt survey will be 
provided after construction is complete along with an inspection by the City Engineer to verify that 
the dock was bu il t to the approved specifications. 

As there was no further discussion amongst the Board, Chairwoman Dunay asked for a motion. 

Board Member Rayburn made tlte Motion to recommend approval of Variance 2018-05 to City 
Council for a boat dock lengtlt of I 02 feet; seconded by Clutinvoman Dunay; motion tmanimously 
approved (5/0). 

• Applications for Waiver- Parking of Recreational Vehicles 

o Edward and Virginia Rice at 5612 Lake Mary J ess Shores Cour·t 

2 Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes M ay 14, 2018 



Mr. Doug Spencer spoke on behalf of property owners Edward and Virginia Rice who could not 
attend the meeting. Mr. Spencer explain that the Rice's request a waiver to store their boat, which has 
been stored in the front of their house for 23 years. Storage of the boat in the fron t of the house is a 
vio lation of Edgewood City Code Section 62-33 - Parking, storage and use of recreation equipment. 

Per Mr. Spencer, at the time the house was built there was no ordinance prohibiting thi s storage and 
the (Home Owner's Association) HOA said a ll restrictions shall remain unchanged. Mr. Spencer sa id 
that in this case the boat is behind the front of the house. He said that the City annexed the 
neighborhood in the 1990' s after the house was built and the equipment had been located there. 

Attorney Smith said that the Code cannot be changed tonight and current City Code will be applied. 
Attorney Smith said the Board needs to ask the applicant if they are unable to meet the code or if they 
would suffer a hardship to do so. Mr. Spencer sa id that erecting a fence would be awkward looking 
and storage would be $40 a month for equipment that was bought a long time ago. 

Mr. Spender said that the HOA has a set of rules that is appropriate for the neighborhood and 
suggested that the City add language to City Code if there is an HOA. Attorney Smith said that the 
City Code prevails as an HOA cannot allow what City Code does not a llow. If Edgewood 's code is 
stri cter, then that would prevail over more lenient HOA regulations. 

In response to Board Member Gragg regarding an expiration period, Attorney Smith said the Board 
can specify the time period. 

In response to Board Member Trivedi regarding neighborhood oppositi on to the application, Attorney 
Smith said the majority of the homeowners must sign the no objection . 

Board Member Rader stated hi s concern about setting a precedent and maintaining the standard of the 
equipment. Attorney Smith said that approval of the waiver can be conditioned on the specific vesse l 
and the conditions of the vessel. Chairwoman Dunay concurred with Board Member Rader. 

Further discussion included the possibili ty of erecting a fence or moving equ ipment to the back yard. 
Mr. Spencer said that he does not want to look at it in his back yard. Board Member Rader asked Mr. 
Spencer if okay for the neighbors to see it; Mr. Spencer responded that the neighbors do not object. 

Chairwoman Dunay sa id that she has a problem with granting thi s as she has neighbors that had to get 
rid of their boats and store them offsite. 

Board Member Gragg said he is inclined to favor the req uest as the applicant annexed into the City 
before the ordinance was in place as he does not want to impose a hardship . He would want to place 
conditions such as the sale of the property. Attorney Smith said that the onus would be on the owner 
for seller's disclosure. Board Member Gragg added that if not for the annexation, he would be 
inclined to favor backyard parking. 

Board Member Rader said setting a precedent is the biggest concern and the standards of the City. 

Chairwoman Dunay asked Planner Hardgrove if parking is only allowed on ly on impervious surfaces. 
Off-street parking in Section 134-608 specifica lly pertains to veh icles per Planner Hardgrove. 

3 Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes May 14, 2018 



Planner Hardgrove concurred wi th Chairwoman Dunay that there could be a concrete pad behind the 
house. 

Nancy Crowell came to the podium and said that the Hardgraves and Rathbuns, neighbors, across the 
street, had no obj ections and Board Member Trivedi said that that the lack of objections could act as a 
precedent. 

Board Member Rader said that he would not want this storage next to his house but this neighborhood 
already has it. Attorney Smith responded thi s is part of the HOA development and the lots were 
developed with the purpose of having these side yards available. 

Cha irwoman Dunay said that the ordinances are in place to prevent th is and she is inclined to vote 
against it as it does not seem li ke a hardship to her. Board Member Rayburn agreed with 
Chairwoman Dunay. 

Board Member Trivedi said that she has a concern because the code change was made after the City 
annexed the properties. Board Member Rader responded that rules do change. 

As there was no fUlther discuss ion, Chairwoman Dunay asked for a motion. 

Board Member Trivedi moved to approve the waiver for the Rice property to allow them to keep it 
with contingency of the sale of tlte house and then it would have to go back to meet the ordinance. 
The motion was not seconded. There was no second. The board disc ussed rephrasing the motion. 

Board Member Trivedi moved to approve the waiver due to the boat .-.tnrage met intent of the HOA 
prior to the ordinance passing and in this instance there is au abundance of non-objecting 
neighbors. There was no second. The board discussed rephrasing the motion. 

Board Member Gragg suggested that if they grant the waiver, it cou ld be cond itioned to be void upon 
sale of property. Attorney Smith said it would be a harder sell with a new resident because it would 
not be the same facts and conditions and referred to seller disclosure. The new owners would have to 
come into compliance with the ordinance. 

In response to Board Member Trivedi, Attorney Smith sa id that they cannot include a change to the 
HOA documents in the motion. 

Board Member Trivedi moved to approve tlte waiver of the Rice property at 5612 Lake Mary Jess 
Shore Court because tlte boat storage met the intent of the HOA prior to the community annexing 
into the City and prior to tit is ordinance coming into place, ami also due to the abwulrmce of non
objections from the neighbors. Conditions include that the homeowners must limit the size to 20 
f eet in lengtlt ami the condition of the vessel IIIIlS ! be good working order appearance, care, ami 
maintenance. This waiver is null and void upon the sale of the house and tlte new homeowner 
must come into compliance with the Code. 

Chairwoman Dunay said that she would like to add a clarification to the last part about the new 
owner's coming into compliance with Code. Board Member Gragg added that the Board would not 
be inclined to provide a wa iver because they were not owners when this ord inance came in to effect. 

4 Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes May 14, 2018 



Board Member Rader seconded the motion on the floor with a friend~r amendment that approval 
of the waiver is conditional with the specific finding the owners were in the commtmity and 
predated the City's Ordinance and that the vessel must maintain proper current registration. 

Board Member Trivedi accepted the Friendly Amendments. The motion was approved (312) with 
Clw irwoman Dunay and Board Member Rayburn opposed. 

• Doug Spencer at 5604 Lake Mary J ess Shores Court 

Res ident Doug Spencer has requested a waiver to park his boat trai ler on the side yard behind a fence, 
where it has been stored for 34 years. 

Chairwoman Dunay asked for discussion from the Board . 

In response to Board Member Trivedi 's question about the function of the tra iler, Mr. Spencer said it 
is used to take the boat somewhere else. 

Chair'vvoman Dunay and Boa rd Member Gragg expressed th at he shares Chairwoman Dunay's 
concerns that the trailer is not on pervious surface. Board Member Gragg sa id the Board's job is to 
pro tect the city and also represent the citi zens of the City and that the neighbors do not object to the 
location of the trailer. He added that he would be inclined to make a motion to approve 5604 Lake 
Mary Jess Shores Court as well, mirroring the fi rst motion. 

In response to Chairwoman Dunay's question on access to the water, Mr. Spencer says he uses the 
neighbor's property but does not require it. He would need to exit through his front yard and then 
drive over the septic tank and he would prefer not to damage a curb. 

As there was no further discussion, Chairwoman Dunay asked for a motion. 

Board Member Gragg made the motion to mirror the first motion f or 5604 Lake Mary Jess Shores 
Court with the same conditions; second by Board Member Trivedi. Motion passed (3/2). Board 
Member Rayburn and Chainvommt Dunay opposed. 

• Allen and Nancy Crowell a t 5550 Lake Mary J ess Shoes Court 

Applicant Nancy Crowe ll came to the podium and said that her neighbors have no objection to their 
boat trailer parked at the side of the house and the tra il has been there for 26 years. The boat stays on 
the lake and the trai ler is used to pu ll the boat out if needed. 

As there was no flllt her discussion, Chairwoman Dunay asked for a motion. 

Board Member Trivedi moved to mirror lite motion at 5550 Lake Mary Jess Shores Court with lite 
same conditions; second by Board Member Gragg. The motion was approved (312) with 
Ch airwoman Dunay and Board Member Rayburn opposed. 

• Ordinance No 2018-07 Electmnic Signs 
Pla nn er Hardgrove introduced the electronic sign ordinance to amend Chapter 122 of the City Code to 
allow and regulate electronic changeable message signs. Planner Hardgrove showed a brief video 

5 Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes May 14, 2018 



explaining electronic messaging. The three key issues for electronic messaging are: message hold 
time, message transition, and allowance for digital area. 

Discussion included hold time, instantaneous change versus fade time and abili ty to enforce the 
conditions. The Board also discussed a llowable locations, the percentage of a sign allowed for the 
digital portion, type of signage, brightness and automatic dimming, and interactive options. 

Per Attorney Smith, message content cannot be limited and noncommercial speech is even more 
protected speech than commercia l. 

Board Member Rader voiced his concerns that electron ic messaging is the noise the City has been 
trying to clean up and Chairwoman Dunay added that she is concerned that 50% allowance may be 
too much. 

Chairwoman Dunay opened the floor for public comments. 

Steve Kinman of Robson Sign Corp spoke as a proponent and spoke on behalf of Dr. Klein. Mr. 
Kinman showed the Board an example of the kind of sign that Dr. Klein would like build and that 
electronic signage assists in disseminating in formation. 

Dr. Bill Klein, owner of Pine Castle Animal Clinic spoke as a proponent and urged the Board to 
approve the ordi nance. He is the business owner of Pine Castle Ani mal Clinic and has been working 
on improvements to the property. He believes that electronic signage c leans it up versus signs using 
channel letters that do not look nice. Both kinds of signs allow free speech. 

In response to Attorney Smith, Dr. Klein said he would not object to a compromise situation such as 
the message changing every 24 hours, but that he would prefer other options. 

There was no fllli her public comment and Chairwoman Dunay asked for more disc ussion amongst the 
Board. 

Board Member Trivedi said that she thinks it would be an extreme case for someone to use their sign 
politically or to offend. 

Sue Fulford, Edgewood business owner, spoke as a proponent. 

Board Member Rader stated hi s concerns that if signs are closer to the side of the road, it is the 
oppos ite of cleaning up the noise. Planner Hardgrove said that in the proposed Edgewood District 
there wi ll not be any visibility for businesses in the back. 

Attorney Smith suggested that digital signage have a different set of criteria. Planner Hardgrove 
fo llowed up with a suggestion of making a new categol)' of digital signs. 

Pla nner Hardgrove asked the Board if they wou ld recommend pursuing digital sign. If so, then 
Attorney Smith and Planner Hardgrove can prov ide information that the Board is comfortable with. 

In response to Board Member Trivedi's concerns about multi- tenant electronic messaging, Planner 
Hardgrove said that is where they can assist in contro ll ing clutter. 

6 Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes May 14, 2018 



Dr. Klein further commented that this is a classy way to advertise and reducing the size may sound 
commerce adverse. 

In response to Planner Hardgrove prior to moving the Ordinance forward to Counci l, Board Member 
Rader said that he wou ld like to see modifications fi rst. Chairwoman Dunay agreed. 

• Edgewood Central Distdct 

Planner Hardgrove di stributed information to the Board with changes made to the Intent and Design 
of the proposed district. 

A workshop to continue work on the Edgewood Central District was scheduled for Monday, June 4, 
20 18 at 6:00 pm. 

Sue Fulford returned to the podium and expressed concern about losing her use. Chairwoman Dunay 
and Board Member Rader responded that she will not lose the use unless the space is abandoned or 
the use is changed. 

COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Chairwoman Dunay asked Deputy City Clerk, Sandy Repp for the next meetings who confirmed that the 
next Planning and Zoning dates would be 

• June ll ,20 18 
• July9, 2018 

ADJOURNMENT: 

With no further business or discussion, Board Member Rader made the Motion to adjourn the 
Planning ami Zoning Board meeting; seconded by C/winvomau Dunay; motion wumimously 
approved (5/0). The meeting adjourned at 9:40p.m. 

7 Planning and Zoning Meeting Minutes May 14, 2018 


